
 
SHAREHOLDER CABINET COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 12 JUNE 2023 
10.00 AM 
 
Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 

 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 7 November 2022 
 

3 - 8 

 To note. 
 

 

4. Additional Equity Investment into Peterborough HE Property Company 
Ltd for Phase 3 of the University 
 

9 - 12 

5. Peterborough Investment Partnership 2022/2023 
 

13 - 56 

6. Assurance of PCC Companies 
 

57 - 64 

7. Shareholder Cabinet Committee Work Programme 
 

65 - 66 

 
 
 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 

responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.  

 
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is 
available at:  
 
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recor
ding&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385 
 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact  on  
as soon as possible. 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack

1

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385


 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: Allen (Chair), Ayres, M Cereste, Coles (Vice Chairman) and Howard 
 

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Pippa Turvey on telephone 
01733452460 or by email – philippa.turvey@peterborough.gov.uk 

 

 
 

2



 
 

MINUTES OF THE SHAREHOLDER CABINET COMMITTEE MEETING  
HELD AT 10:00PM ON 

MONDAY 7 NOVEMBER 2022  

BOURGES/VIERSEN ROOM, TOWN HALL 
 

Members Present: Councillors Allen (Chair), Councillor Bisby, Councillor Cereste, Councillor 

Coles, Councillor Howard 
 

9. Apologies for Absence 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ayres. Councillor Bisby was in 
attendance as substitute. 

 
10. Declarations of Interest 
 

 There were no declarations of interest received. 
 
11. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 13 June 2022 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2022 were noted as a true and accurate 
record. 
 
The Chair advised that, as no officers were yet in attendance for agenda item 4, ‘NPS 
Peterborough Business Plan Strategy’, this would be moved to the end of the agenda. 

 
12. Opportunity Peterborough 
 

The Shareholder Cabinet Committee received a report in relation to Opportunity 
Peterborough. 
 
The purpose of this report was to provide an update on the activities and achievements 
of Opportunity Peterborough, as well as on the company’s plans for the financial year 
2022/23. 
 
Tom Hennessy, Chief Executive of Opportunity Peterborough, addressed the 
Shareholder Cabinet Committee and outlined the contents of the report. 

 
 The Shareholder Cabinet Committee debated the report and in summary, key points 

raised and responses to questions included: 
 

 Members were pleased to hear that Opportunity Peterborough continued to be 
involved in Visit Peterborough. 

 It was acknowledged that there was an abundance of vacant office space in 
Peterborough currently, as companies across the public and private sectors were 
reassessing their priorities. Good spaces were available, however, and 
Opportunity Peterborough was providing support to the Council around inquiries 
regarding the leasing of Sand Martin House.  

 Comment was made that, while there was bound to be an impact on the city’s 
leisure and evening entertainment economy due to the reduction in office use, 
the increase in residential spaces in had counteracted this. Peterborough’s high 

3



street was outperforming that of other cities in a post-COVID-19 environment. 

 Members were advised that some companies had been hesitant to sponsor 
large-scale events in present circumstances, though there would be companies 
wanting to raise their profile who may be brought on-board to sponsor events like 
the Great Eastern Run in the future.  

 At present, Opportunity Peterborough was working with the university to 
understand more about the courses being offered and how these could be 
incorporated into promotional materials.  

 It was noted that, while office space was available, there was limited space for 
industrial and logistics businesses on the outskirts of the city where these would 
be better suited.  

 Work was being undertaken with the Smart Alliance to promote sustainability, 
and with the Council on the Local Energy Action Plan.  

 It was acknowledged that the city was in a good position to attract more green 
companies to move, and this would be pursued by Opportunity Peterborough.  

 Members were advised that £1 million of investment had been proposed into the 
Council’s growth and regeneration function, including bringing the Opportunity 
Peterborough function in-house. This would embed this work within a wider 
range of the Council’s services.  

 It was noted that Opportunity Peterborough had had huge success in building 
relationships with the local business community, which it was important to retain 
following the service moving back in-house. Comment was made that the team 
would continue to operate as a business-facing entity following the move, and 
would retain its entrepreneurial mind-set.  

 It was further advised that a business board would oversee the Opportunity 
Peterborough work to ensure that it was fit for purpose, and would engage more 
broadly with Council serves, in order to retain a degree of autonomy.  

 In relation to the Advanced Capacities for Manufacturing – Industry 4.0 
(ACMI4.0), it was advised that, as an EU-funded support programme, this had 
been opened up to business outside of the Peterborough and was available until 
June 2023. At the currently, approximately 1/3 of the funding pot had been used. 
Officers were confident that the target level of support provision would be 
reached.  

 The intention of the funding was to improve the productivity of business and 
provider greater sustainability.  

 Members were advised that morale at Opportunity Peterborough was positive 
ahead of the transfer into the Council, with transparent and open conversations 
being hand on a regular basis to keep them informed.  

 It was noted that, as the service would complete its transfer into the Council in 
the coming months, any future update reports would be heard by Cabinet rather 
than the Shareholder Cabinet Committee.   
 

The Shareholder Cabinet Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to: 

 

 Note the achievements and impact of Opportunity Peterborough with regards to 
support for the local economy and jobs creation, as well as plans for the financial 
year 2022/23. 

 
 REASONS FOR THE DECISION  
 
 By supporting the delivery of the Council’s priorities Opportunity Peterborough could 

also reduce demand on the Council’s services, thereby having a positive budgetary 
impact as well as increasing the Council’s income via increased business rates receipts. 

 
 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4



 

To not support Opportunity Peterborough’s work and progress to date - This had been 
rejected on the basis that Opportunity Peterborough’s work programme closely aligned 
with, and added value to, the Council’s own priorities and provided excellent value for 
money as a means of meeting these priorities. 

 
13. Peterborough HE Property Company LTD 
 

The Shareholder Cabinet Committee received a report in relation to the Peterborough 
HE Property Company Ltd. 
 
The purpose of this report was to provide an overview to Shareholder Cabinet 
Committee of the Council’s role and interests in the Peterborough HE Property Company 
Ltd, enabling Members to scrutinise and challenge as well as inform future activity. 
 
Adrian Chapman, the Executive Director for Place and Economy, addressed the 
Shareholder Cabinet Committee and outlined the contents of the report. 

 
 The Shareholder Cabinet Committee debated the report and in summary, key points 

raised and responses to questions included: 
 

 The Propco had been established for the long-term, and talks were already 
beginning around phases 4 and 5.  

 Ambitious plans were being discussed around growing the campus in each 
upcoming phase. 

 It was acknowledged that further funding from Government would be required, 
but the potential for increased earnings within the city was considered to be vital.  

 The vision remained for ARU Peterborough to remain a campus-based 
university, though early stages of a “Plan B” were in development should existing 
city buildings require repurposing.  

 While 48% of the current intact came from a PE postcode, it was noted that this 
covered a wide area and that provision of accommodation was important for 
future success.  

 A key aim of the university was considered to be keeping talent local to the 
Peterborough area after graduation.  

 Suggestion was made that sponsorship opportunities be taken into 
consideration, in order to both support the development of students and benefit 
the local business economy.  

 It was advised that the university already had relationships with local employers 
and were aiming to develop more.  

 Suggestion was specifically made around the potential for the local car industry 
to link in with the university, and this would be followed up by officers, as work 
was already ongoing in this area with Peterborough College.  

 It was noted that the university currently had around 950 learners currently, with 
52% of these not local to Peterborough. As such, the need for accommodation 
was flagged as a priority going forward.  

 Members were advised that the current approach was to “pepper pot” students 
into the city, with plans to retro-fit existing buildings into accommodation. It was, 
however, recognised that there was already a high demand for housing in the 
area and a holistic approach to providing housing for all those in need was vital.  
 

The Shareholder Cabinet Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to: 

 
1. Note the work of the Peterborough HE Property Company Ltd, and the Council’s 

role as shareholder in that company; 

5



2. Assure itself that the role of the Council as shareholder in that company was 
being fulfilled appropriately. 

 
 REASONS FOR THE DECISION  
 

 The decision would ensure Shareholder Cabinet could assure itself that the council was 
fulfilling its role in the company appropriately. 

 
 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 

It is anticipated that Shareholder Cabinet has greater visibility of the role and work of the 
Peterborough HE Property Company Ltd and is assured that the council’s formal role in 
the work of the company is being appropriately fulfilled. 

 
14. NPS Peterborough Business Plan Strategy 
 

The Shareholder Cabinet Committee received a report in relation to NPS Peterborough 
in the 2022/23 period.  
 
The purpose of this report was to provide the committee with an outline of the work that 
NPS were currently undertaking for the Council as part of its business plan. 
 
In the absence of officers, Councillor Coles provided an overview of the contents of the 
report. 

 
 The Shareholder Cabinet Committee debated the report and in summary, key points 

raised and responses to questions included: 
 

 Simon Lewis had been appointed as the new Service Director for Commercial, 
Property and Asset Management, and had started the process of bringing the 
property function back in-house. 
 

The Shareholder Cabinet Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to: 

 
1. Note the contents of the NPS Peterborough Ltd presentation covering the 

2022/23 period. 
2. Note the comments in the report in respect of the future direction of the Property 

function relation to the decision to end the current joint venture with NPS 
(Peterborough) Ltd and the transition to providing the property function internally.  

 
 REASONS FOR THE DECISION  
 

 The Committee were asked to note the report and associated documents and raise any 
queries or comments. 

 
 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 

The review carried out earlier in 2022 and the report to Cabinet in June set out the basis 
of the decision to terminate the joint venture. The alternative of continuing was ruled out 
at that time and an alternative external delivery was not considered appropriate for the 
strategic elements of the service. The council would consider any framework of contract 
arrangements to deliver all elements of the property service as necessary in due course. 

 
15. Shareholder Cabinet Committee Work Programme 

 
 The Shareholder Cabinet Committee received the Shareholder Cabinet Committee work 

6



programme for the 2022/2023 municipal year and noted that the ‘City of Culture 
Peterborough’ item scheduled for the 27 January 2023 meeting should read ‘City Culture 
Peterborough’.  

 
 The Shareholder Cabinet Committee considered the report and RESOLVED to note the 

latest version of the work programme. 
 

Chairman 
10:00am – 10:56am 

7 November 2022 

7



This page is intentionally left blank

8



 

 
SHAREHOLDER CABINET  
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

12 JUNE 2023 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Report of: Adrian Chapman, Executive Director for Place and Economy 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Lynne Ayres, Cabinet Member for Education, Skills, and 
Children’s Services 

Contact Officer(s): Adrian Chapman, Executive Director for Place and 
Economy 

Tel. 07920 160441 

 

ADDITIONAL EQUITY INVESTMENT INTO PETERBOROUGH HE PROPERTY COMPANY 

LTD FOR PHASE 3 OF THE UNIVERSITY 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
FROM: Executive Director - Place and Economy Deadline date: N/A 

 

 
Shareholder Cabinet Committee recommends that Cabinet: 
 
1. Approves an additional investment of 1,300,000 Ordinary Shares (to the value of £1 per share) into 

Peterborough HE Property Company Ltd, to enable phase 3 of the University development to 
proceed. 
 

2. Provide delegated authority to the Executive Director for Place and Economy, in consultation with 
the Executive Director for Resources, to agree final versions of the subscription letter and the 
funding profile to be included in the shareholder’s agreement with Peterborough HE Property 

Company Ltd. 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 
1.1 This report is submitted to Shareholder Cabinet Committee at the request of the Executive 

Director for Place and Economy. 
 

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT  
 

2.1 The purpose of the report is to seek approval from the Shareholder Cabinet Committee to 
recommend to Cabinet investment of an additional £1.3m equity into the Peterborough HE 
Property Company Ltd (known as PropCo1) to contribute towards additional construction costs 
on the University of Peterborough Phase 3 Living Lab project. 
 

2.2 Peterborough City Council (PCC) is party to a Shareholders Agreement in respect of the 
Company dated 23 December 2020 as amended and restated on 1 April 2022.  Should the 
additional equity investment be agreed, PropCo1 will be entitled to call upon PCC to pay the 
Subscription Amount in exchange for the allotment of the relevant number of New Shares. A 
request for additional investment into PropCo1 is a shareholder consent matter, and, as one of 
the shareholders in PropCo1, this decision is required to be made by Cabinet via a 
recommendation from Shareholder Cabinet Committee. 
 

2.3 This report is for Shareholder Cabinet to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 3.3.2(d), ‘To 
make recommendations to Cabinet in relation to investments, loans, and assets’. 
 

3. TIMESCALES  

9



  
Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

 
 

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting  

N/A 

 

4. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 

4.1 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Phase 3 of the new university is a new teaching building and Living Lab. The delivery of this 
phase is largely funded via Levelling Up Funding (LUF) which requires completion of the project 
by September 2024. 
 
In early 2023, at tender stage the main contractor flagged significant cost pressures relating to 
specific packages of work, namely cladding, external, and mechanical and electrical works. Work 
has been undertaken to value engineer costs down, and addressing the remaining cost pressure 
via detailed re-design would have resulted in a delay to completion to Summer 2025, with likely 
cost increases and significant changes to outcomes, and ultimately would have placed the LUF 
funding at risk. DLUHC have been notified of the issue, but additional funding via LUF is not an 
option.  Furthermore, a loan to the company was also discounted on the grounds that the 
leasehold and shareholder arrangements mean that the company is not income generating until 
2032. It therefore would not have sufficient funds in place to repay the loan. 
 

Following the outcomes of the value engineering work, an additional £3.9m funding is required to 
meet the programme and project objectives. Prior to confirming this figure, PropCo1 directors 
and support staff have met on various occasions to examine in detail the budget information to 
satisfy themselves that all other options have been exhausted.   
 
This means that there is insufficient funding within the budget to bridge the cost variance. As a 
result, PropCo1 have approached its Shareholders (Peterborough City Council, Cambridgeshire 
and Peterborough Combined Authority, and Anglia Ruskin University), who have all agreed, in 
principle and subject to appropriate governance, to identify additional funding to bridge the cost 
variance.  
 
Following a review between the shareholders, it was agreed that an equal contribution of £1.3m 
each towards the funding gap was appropriate due to the short notice required to support the 
company, lack of available funding opportunities to shareholders via central government or other 
potential investors, and lack of sufficient income streams to repay a loan.  Furthermore, an 
additional £1.3m investment from each shareholder does not significantly impact the overall 
proportion of the shareholding, which means that the principles regarding the shareholders 
agreement remain in place. 
 

5. CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 

5.1 1. The Economy & Inclusive Growth  
The new University in Peterborough will improve access to better quality jobs and improve access 
to better quality employment, helping to reverse decades of relative economic decline, and 
increasing opportunities, aspiration, wages and social mobility for residents.  
 
2. Our Places & Communities  
The expanded University in Peterborough will translate the resulting increase in individual 
opportunity, prosperity and social mobility into outcomes across wellbeing, health and healthy life 
expectancy from the programme, and on into people living happier, healthier lives.  
 
3. Prevention, Independence & Resilience  
The new University in Peterborough will address one of the country’s most significant “cold spots” 
for Higher Education. With a curriculum co-created by local employers it will give both students 
the skills they need for great careers and offer employers access to the talent they need to thrive 
in the modern economy.  

10



 
4. Sustainable Future City Council 
The new University in Peterborough will accelerate the renaissance of Peterborough as a 
knowledge-intensive university city, increasing civic pride and satisfaction within Peterborough 
as a place offering a good quality of life with improved public facilities, and providing a tangible 
example of levelling up. 
 

6. CONSULTATION 
 

6.1 Consultation with other shareholders has taken place via formal PropCo1 Board meetings. 
Relevant Cabinet Members has also been consulted.   
 

7. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT  
 

7.1 
 
 
 
7.2 

 
 
 
 
7.2 

It is proposed that PCC will invest a further 1,300,000 Ordinary Shares (to the value of £1 per 
share) into PropCo1 to contribute towards additional construction costs that have resulted from 
increases in inflation and rising materials costs.   
 
PCC are the legal and beneficial owners of 38.7% of the existing share capital of the Company. 

It is proposed that PCC subscribe to more shares that, along with the known intention of the other 
two existing shareholders (Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority and Anglia 
Ruskin University), will result in a 37.6% holding in the PropCo1 shares. 
 
The additional shares will ensure that the Phase 3 building is delivered to the original programme 
and agreed outcomes as detailed and agreed by the Cabinet at their meeting on 16 January 
2023. 
 

8. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION 
 

8.1 The recommendations contained in this report are designed to ensure Shareholder Cabinet 
Committee have sufficient information to enable it to make a recommendation to Cabinet. 
 

9. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

9.1 These are described in section 4 of this report. 
 

10. IMPLICATIONS 
 

10.1 Financial Implications 
 

 It is proposed that the additional funding requested in this report will be found within the existing 
approved Capital Programme. To achieve this, officers will: 

(i) Further review the projects within the existing programme to determine whether any could 
be reduced or delayed 

(ii) Replace corporate borrowing required within the programme with grant funding that is or 
becomes available – for example, we currently plan to fund Highways-related extreme 
weather works with borrowing, but could switch this with DfT pothole funding 

 
The financial planning intention is to drawdown and expend the £20m Levelling Up funding first, 
and the already planned shareholder call downs of funding, so it is expected that the additional 
share for £1.3m will be required in the last quarter of 2023/24. This additional shareholder share 
profiling, and subsequent cash drawdown, is being reviewed once the final expenditure profile is 
agreed. 
 

10.2 Legal Implications 
 

 Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 provides that a local authority has power to do anything that 
individuals generally may do. Consequently, PCC is able to invest in a company as an individual 

11



can do, bearing in mind the limitations of Section 4. This is not a commercial venture, as the 
company was set up for the provision of education. 
 
The Local Authorities (Capital Financing and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 include 
the requirement for local authorities to have regard to CIPFA guidance. 
 
Revised reporting is required due to revisions of the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 
Government (‘MHCLG’) Investment Guidance, the MHCLG Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
Guidance, the CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code. 
 
The Legal Team will be involved in the preparation of any legal documents relevant to the 
investment. 
 

10.3 Equalities Implications 
 

 The new University in Peterborough will improve access to better quality jobs and improve access 
to better quality employment, helping to reverse decades of relative economic decline, and 
increasing opportunities, aspiration, wages and social mobility for residents. 

 
11. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 

 Cabinet meeting paper 16 January 2023 
 

12. APPENDICES 
 

 None 
 

 

12

https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s48775/12.%20ARU%20Peterborough%20Phase%203%20Full%20Business%20Case.pdf


 

 

 
SHAREHOLDER CABINET COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 5 

12 JUNE 2023 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Report of: Adrian Chapman, Executive Director for Place and Economy 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Wayne Fitzgerald, Leader of the Council  

Contact Officer(s): Adrian Chapman, Executive Director for Place and 
Economy 

Tom Hennessy, Head of Economic Growth and 
Development 

Tel. 
07952096424 

07950960108 

 

PETERBOROUGH INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIP 2022/2023 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
FROM: Adrian Chapman, Executive Director, Place and 
Economy 

Deadline date: N/A 
 

 
It is recommended that the Shareholder Cabinet Committee: 
 
1. Note the contents of the report for 2022/2023. 
2. Note the company activity for 2022/2023.  
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 
1.1 This report is submitted to the Shareholder Cabinet Committee at the request of the Committee.  

 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT  

 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to provide a brief annual review of the activities of the Peterborough 

Investment Partnership up to and including the period 2022/23.  
 

2.2 This report is for Shareholder Cabinet Committee to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 
3.3.2(a) ‘To monitor performance of the companies, partnerships, and charities in line with 
Cabinet approved business plans and particular the company’s performance.’ 
 

3. TIMESCALES  
  

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting  

N/A 

 

4. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 
 

4.1 

 
 
 
 
4.2 
 

Peterborough Investment Partnership (PIP) LLP is a development and regeneration joint venture 

between Peterborough City Council and Peterborough Partnership Ltd, a subsidiary of 
investment specialists IAGH3. PIP was created in 2015 and its first project was to masterplan 
and lead the delivery of the £120m Fletton Quays scheme on the south bank of the river Nene.  
 
The Fletton Quays scheme comprises various plots, the progress for which is as follows: 
 

13



4.2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.2 
 
 
 
4.2.3 
 
 
 
 
4.2.4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
4.2.5 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
4.3.1 

 
 
 
4.3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fletton Quays Plot 1 - The Hilton Garden Inn Hotel and apartment block.  
The Hilton Garden Inn Hotel will be an excellent addition to Peterborough city centre, with its sky 
bar promising to become a destination in its own right. Completion was originally scheduled for 
2022 but a number of COVID-related setbacks including staff illness, supply chain challenges, 
and the collapse of the main contractor, have meant that the earliest pre-bookings at the hotel 
are now being taken for December 2023.  
 
Fletton Quays Plot 2 – Government Hub.  
The Government Hub, which houses 1,000 government employees predominantly from Defra 
and the Passport Office, officially opened in March 2023.  
 
Fletton Quays Plot 3 – Apartments. 
Weston Homes have completed work on the riverfront apartments on Plot 3. A number of 
opportunities remain for occupation of commercial space on the ground floor of these buildings.  
 
Fletton Quays Plot 4 - Goods Shed.  
The Goods Shed is currently being marketed via Eddisons and a number of parties have 
expressed interest. This is the only plot still under the ownership of PIP. We are keen to see the 

development of the iconic Goods Shed as one which can incorporate an attractive food and 
beverage offer, to support the existing and continued increase in city centre living and to support 
our visitor economy. 
 
Fletton Quays Plot 5 – Sand Martin House.  
At time of writing, Sand Martin House is currently in the ownership of Legal and General and is 
occupied by Peterborough City Council and the Construction Industry Training Board (CITB). 
Peterborough City Council commenced a 25-year lease of the property in 2018 and is currently 
in the process of purchasing the freehold of the building.  
 
For information, Fletton Quays Plots 7 and 8 (Whitworth Mill and adjacent land) were not part 
of the original acquisition of the Fletton Quays site by the PIP. This area wasn’t available when 
the rest of the site was acquired, and so was separately acquired by the council and has been 
sold to a developer via that route. The PIP did however grant an easement due to access issues. 
A planning application is believed to be forthcoming relating the redevelopment of Whitworth Mill 
for residential use. 
 
There are other locations within the city that the PIP has had interest in, and the updates relating 
to those are as follows: 
 
Pleasure Fair Meadows car park. 
Pleasure Fair Meadows car park has been sold by the PIP to Medesham Homes. There are no 

formal plans in place yet for its intended use. 
 
Former Market site, Northminster. 
The Northminster site was sold to Cross Keys Homes in June 2022. The site was brought forward 
using a £12.5m grant from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority and will 
deliver a £70m development providing 315 new affordable homes in the city centre. It is due to 
be completed by October 2024.   
 
A number of Special Purpose Vehicles were set up to bring forward each of the sites under the 
PIP’s control – PIP (Fletton Quays) Limited, PIP (Pleasure Fair Meadows) Limited, and PIP 
(Northminister) Limited: 
 
PIP (Northminister) Limited was sold to Cross Key Homes as part of the commercial agreement 
to bring forward that site.  
PIP (Pleasure Fair Meadows) Limited has a small cash balance.  
PIP (Fletton Quays) Limited has a small cash balance and still has ownership of Plot 4 – The 
Goods Shed. 
 

14



4.5 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 

During 2022/23, the council-appointed directors of the remaining SPVs changed to the Executive 
Director for Place and Economy, and the Chief Executive of Opportunity Peterborough. 
 
It is anticipated by all parties that, following the sale of Fletton Quays Plot 4, which is expected 
will take place during 2023, Peterborough Investment Partnership LLP should be dissolved and 
that collaboration regarding future sites and opportunities would be assessed and dealt with on 
a case-by-case basis. 
 

5. CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 

5.1 
 
 
5.2 

Although the content and recommendations within this report do not directly link to the corporate 
priorities, the projects and sites brought forward do.  
 
Regarding the Economy and Inclusive Growth priority, the schemes promoted by PIP reduce 
poverty and inequality by attracting good paying jobs, support existing and new businesses to 
make it easy to invest and grow, enable more new and affordable homes for purchase or rent, 
enable safer and more independent living, and prevent homelessness.  

 
6. CONSULTATION 

 
6.1 No consultation is required for this report or the recommendations within, although all planning 

applications associated with any of the projects mentioned in it will be, or have been, consulted 
on in the usual way with a wide range of stakeholders.  
 

6.2 No other consultations are suggested other than those that would be associated with any related 
planning applications. 
 

7. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT  
 

7.1 That the Shareholder Cabinet Committee will note the contents of the report. 
 

8. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION 
 

8.1 The recommendation contained within this report is designed to allow the Shareholder Cabinet 
Committee to review the status and activities of PIP LLP and assure itself that the Council is 
fulfilling its role in the company appropriately. 
 

9. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

9.1 Not applicable, as this report is for information only. 
 

10. IMPLICATIONS 
 

 Financial Implications 
 

10.1 None directly from this report. However, the PIP LLP Consolidated Accounts for the 2021/22 
financial year are attached at appendix 1 for information. These comprise financial data relating 
to the various SPVs and have been thoroughly reviewed by our own finance team prior to being 
approved. 
 
The PIP LLP made a loss in the financial year 2021/22 of £166k, however the entity held reserves 
at 31 March 2022 to the value of £1.3m.  The major land sales of the Northminster site and the 
Pleasure Fair Meadows car park were made in the financial year 2022/23 and so will be reflected 
in the accounts of that financial year. 
 

 Legal Implications 
 

10.2 None directly from this report. 

15



 
 Equalities Implications 

 
10.3 None directly from this report. 

 
11. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 

11.1 None. 
 

12. APPENDICES 
 

12.1 Appendix A – PIP LLP Consolidated Accounts 2021-22. These are the latest consolidated 
accounts currently available.  
 

 

16



APPENDIX A

17



APPENDIX A

18



APPENDIX A

19



APPENDIX A

20



APPENDIX A

21



APPENDIX A

22



APPENDIX A

23



APPENDIX A

24



APPENDIX A

25



APPENDIX A

26



APPENDIX A

27



APPENDIX A

28



APPENDIX A

29



APPENDIX A

30



APPENDIX A

31



APPENDIX A

32



APPENDIX A

33



APPENDIX A

34



APPENDIX A

35



APPENDIX A

36



APPENDIX A

37



APPENDIX A

38



APPENDIX A

39



APPENDIX A

40



APPENDIX A

41



APPENDIX A

42



APPENDIX A

43



APPENDIX A

44



APPENDIX A

45



APPENDIX A

46



APPENDIX A

47



APPENDIX A

48



APPENDIX A

49



APPENDIX A

50



APPENDIX A

51



APPENDIX A

52



APPENDIX A

53



APPENDIX A

54



APPENDIX A

55



APPENDIX A

56



 

 
SHAREHOLDER CABINET COMMITTEE 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 6 

12 JUNE 2023 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Report of: Director of Law & Governance (Monitoring Officer) 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Andy Coles 

 

Contact Officer(s): Rochelle Tapping, Director of Law & Governance 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Cecilie Booth, Director of Corporate Resources (s151 
officer) 

 

 

ASSURANCE OF PCC COMPANIES  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
FROM: Director of Law & Governance 

 

Deadline date: N/A 

 
     It is recommended that the Shareholder Cabinet Committee: 
 

1. Note the revised Terms of Reference for the Shareholder Cabinet Committee 
2. Note the Companies Unit and its Terms of Reference 
3. Note the lead officer role and role description. 
4. Agrees training programme, for members and officers involved in council companies and 

partnerships, to be organised by the Monitoring Officer 
 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 
1.1 This report is submitted to the Shareholder Cabinet Committee to provide clarity on the arrangements 

for oversight of Peterborough City Council (PCC) companies.  
 

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT  

 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to: 

 
● Review the remit and powers of the Committee. 
● Set out arrangements for oversight of PCC companies.  
● Endorse training proposals for members and officers. 

 
3. TIMESCALES  

  

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting  

N/A 

 

4 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

 
4.1 This report: 

 

● Sets out the Shareholder Cabinet Committee terms of reference  
● Details arrangements for central oversight of PCC companies including audit and scrutiny 

committee involvement.  
  

4.2 Shareholder Cabinet Committee Purpose and Functions 

57

https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=713
https://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=713


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

The terms of reference of the shareholder committee have been updated to reflect best practice 
guidance as set out in the Governance of council interests in companies code of practice. Companies 
of the Council will inform decision making and be held to account by the Shareholder cabinet 
committee. The shareholder cabinet committee will provide oversight from a shareholder perspective, 
that the parameters set by the Council, for the companies are being adhered to. 
 

Functions of the Shareholder Cabinet Committee and those reserved to Cabinet 
 

To monitor performance of the companies, partnerships, and charities in line with Cabinet approved 
business plans and particular the company’s performance in financial matters: 
    

(a) against the social goals of the company as set out in the company’s Objects, Business Case or 
Business Plan; and against the values of the Council by means of monthly performance monitoring 
and scrutiny. 

(b) To provide the necessary oversight from the shareholder’s perspective and ensure that those 
companies, partnerships, and charities comply with relevant Council policies, strategies, and 
objectives 

(c) To exercise decisions, where delegated by Cabinet, in relation to a company, partnership or 
charity’s reserved matters 

(d) To make recommendations to Cabinet in relation to investments, loans, and assets 
(e) To evaluate and monitor the financial and social returns on investment and risks and opportunities 

including those arising from joint ventures or new opportunities. 
(f) To oversee the relationships between the Council and the Council’s companies, partnerships, and 

charities, and any such relationships between the Council’s companies, partnerships, and 
charities in accordance with the Council’s objectives. 

(g) To review any reports in relation to the Council’s companies, partnerships, or charities prior to 
their submission to the Audit Committee to ensure compliance with Council policies, strategies, 
and objectives. 

(h) To determine for each individual company, partnership, or charity whether the Shareholder 
Cabinet Committee recommends to Cabinet the delegation of any functions to the officers of the 
Council. 

  .  

Functions Reserved to Cabinet  

Cabinet will be responsible for the following functions in relation to the Council's companies, 
partnerships and charities:  
 
(a)  The establishment of any new company, partnership or charity;  
(b)  The decommissioning/winding up of existing companies, partnerships and charities.  
(c)  The determination of Articles of Association;  
(d)  The determination of the percentage share of ownership;  
(e)  The determination of the investment of funds and assets;  
(f)  The determination of any lending facilities to the Council’s companies, partnerships and     charities;  
(g) The determination of decisions reserved to the Council as shareholder or member of a     company, 

partnership or charity;  
(h)  Scheme of delegations to the Shareholder Cabinet Committee; 
(i)   Approval of Business Plans;  
(i)  Approval of changes to service agreements in respect of KPIs, service levels and service standards;  
(k) The setting of Policy Strategy and objectives for the operation of the Council’s companies,  

partnerships, and charities.  
 

4.4 Overview of Issues 
 

Members and officers are allocated to various companies and boards.  One of the significant 
responsibilities of the Shareholder Cabinet Committee is to ensure that Council aims, objectives and 
requirements are delivered both within these Companies and also across these Companies. As such 
the Committee: 
 

● Needs to understand potential conflicts of interest between Company Board member’s statutory 
requirements and the Council’s objectives. 

58



● What needs to be put reinforced in terms of the governance and client management of the 
Council’s companies in order to ensure the Council’s objectives are delivered.   
 

Training for members and officers  

 
A training programme will be developed and delivered by external professions. This training is for all 
Councillors and Officers that sit on company Boards. This training will extend to Cabinet members and 
members of the shareholder board and will cover the following key areas: 

 Role of a director 

 Conflicts of interest 
 Management of local authority companies 

 
Governance of companies  

 
Changes to the governance arrangements are progressing with the implementation of a PCC 
Companies Unit. This officer led unit will have central oversight of all PCC companies. The Companies 
unit is made up of officers from legal, finance and procurement and will be headed by the Companies 
lead who will have company secretary expertise. A recruitment exercise will commence for the 
Companies lead, however in the interim, this work will be supported by the Monitoring Officer, Head of 
Legal and the legal team. 
 
The unit will convene monthly and have responsibility for the work plan for the shareholder cabinet 
committee, ensuring that any matters for the company are first considered by the by the unit, prior to 
progressing to the shareholder cabinet committee. Broad expectations of the Unit, in relation to the 
companies include: 
 

(a) Consideration of the best course of action  
(b) Assessing whether decisions are for the shareholder committee. 

 

Terms of reference for the Companies unit is at appendix A. 

 
A lead officer from each company will report into the Companies unit. That officer is responsible for 
ensuring that all activities of that company and decisions to be made are first considered by the 
Companies unit. Appendix B details the role description for the lead officer role. The first Companies 
Unit meeting will commence in June. 
 
The Growth, Resources and Communities overview and scrutiny committee’s terms of reference has 
been updated to include: 
 
To scrutinise the operation of the authority’s companies as part of the work programme and to 
provide constructive challenge 
 
The committee will have a role in ensuring that the companies are making sufficient returns on 
investment and that any social objectives are not loss. The committee will also hold the executive to 
account in relation to achieving the objectives of the companies in line with business cases applicable. 
 
It is proposed that the audit committee will also be responsible for of PCC companies. This piece will 
develop in consultation with the audit committee.  

  
5. CONSULTATION 

 
5.1 N/A 

 
6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT  

 
6.1 The purpose of this report is robust oversight of PCC companies. 

 
7. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION 

 

59



7.1 To outline arrangements for the shareholder committee and central oversight of all PCC companies 
 

8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
8.1 None  

 
9. IMPLICATIONS 

 
 Financial Implications 

 
9.1 N/A 

 
 Legal Implications 

 
9.2 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 
 Equalities Implications 

 
9.3 There are no equalities implications arising from this report. 

 
 Carbon Impact Implications 

 
9.4 

 
There are no carbon impact implications arising from this report. 
 

10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 
 

11. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

  
11.1 None. 

 
12. APPENDICES 

 
12.1 Appendix A - Terms of reference for the Companies unit 

Appendix B - Role Description for Lead Officers 
 
 

 

60



APPENDIX A 

Appendix A: Companies Unit Terms of Reference 
 

To assist it in its functions the Companies Unit: 
 

1. may establish and consult standing sub-groups, such as might be required in respect of: 
(a)  Audit and Risk; 

(b)  Ethical practices; or 
(c)  Nominations and Remuneration 

 

2. may establish and consult ad-hoc or task and finish sub-groups in respect of any 

matter; and 

 
3. may establish and consult stakeholder groups on any particular aspect or the 

generality of the objects of the trading companies 
 
A sub-group or stakeholder group may contain such co-opted members, advisors or 
observers as the Shareholder Group sees fit. 
 
Functions 
 

1. Monitor the performance of a company in relation to its Business Plan and, in 

particular the company's performance: 

(a)  in financial matters 

(b)  against the social goals of the company as set out in the company's  

 Objects, Business Case or Business Plan; and 

(c)  against the values of the Council. 
 

2. Evaluate and monitor: 

(a)  the financial and social returns on investment (be that shareholding, loans or 

 direct investment); and 

(b)  risks and opportunities including those arising from joint ventures or new 

 opportunities. 

 
3. Consider matters reserved to the Council/Cabinet for shareholder approval, such as: 

(a)  Varying Articles of Association 

(b)  Varying ownership and structure 

(c)  Variations to shares (number of, rights, etc) 

(d)  Entering contracts that: 

(i)  have a material effect on PCC Council business are outside of the business plan 

 or do not relate to the business. 

(ii)  significant in relation to the size of the business, the business plan, etc. 

(e)  Material legal proceedings outside of ordinary business 

(f) Adopting and amending business plans each year and strategic plans (3 years) 

(g)  Appointment, removal and the remuneration of directors members of the 
 company board) 

(h)  Selection of the chair of the board 

61



APPENDIX A 

(i)  Appointment of auditors 

(j)  Issue of dividends as more particularly set out in a company's Articles of 

 Association or Shareholder Agreement. 

 
Relationship 
 

The Companies Unit as it considers appropriate in accordance with its functions described 
above, may: 
 

1. report and make formal recommendations to the Leader, directly or to the wider Cabinet; 
 
2. make reports to and consult Overview and Scrutiny (including full Council) or make reports 

to and consult the Audit Committee, in relation to that Committee's particular functions. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

62



APPENDIX B 

PCC Lead Officer 

For each company, the council will appoint a Lead Officer. Each Lead Officer will 

have sufficient experience, skills, and seniority to be able to discharge their duties 

effectively. 

The purpose of the Lead Officer is to protect the council’s interests and to act as a 

conduit between the council and the companies. 

The standards of behaviour required include: 

 To act with honesty and integrity inf the delivery of their duties. 

 

 To actively communicate and collaborate with all required within the wider 

governance framework. 

 

 To build and maintain effective and transparent relationships with all parties. 

 

 To take personal accountability for own actions and decisions. 

 

 To take personal responsibility for own continuous improvement working 

collectively with other shareholder representatives where appropriate.  

 

 To actively work to promote and improve good working relationships between 

the Council and its companies 

 

 To take appropriate action to avoid confits of interest arising especially in 

relation to the shareholder role and any client's roles.  

 

 

63



This page is intentionally left blank

64



 
 

Updated: October 2022 

   
 

Shareholder Cabinet Committee Work Programme 2023/24 

 

Meeting Date Item Comments 

12 June 2023 
 

Deadline for Exempt Information 
Notice: 5 May 2023 
 

Draft Report: 24 May 2023 
Final Report: 31 May 2023 

Guidance for Member and Officers who Serve on 
Outside Bodies  
 
Lead Officer - Rochelle Tapping 

 

 Peterborough Investment Partnership 
 
Lead Officer - Adrian Chapman 

 

 University Phase 3 – Recommendation to Cabinet 
 
Lead Officer – Adrian Chapman 

 

   

11 September 2023 
 
Deadline for Exempt Information 
Notice: 11 August 2023 
 

Draft Report: 23 August 2023 
Final Report: 30 August 2023 

Medesham Homes 

 

Lead Officer - Simon Lewis 

 

   

6 November 2023 
 

Deadline for Exempt Information 
Notice: 6 October 2023 
 

Peterborough Limited 
 
Lead Officer - Adrian Chapman 
 

 

65



 
 

Updated: October 2022 

   
 

Draft Report: 18 October 2023 
Final Report: 25 October 2023 

 

26 February 2024 

 
Deadline for Exempt Information 
Notice: 26 January 2024 
 

Draft Report: 7 February 2024 
Final Report: 14 February 2024 

Peterborough HE Property Company  
 
Lead Officer - Adrian Chapman 
 

 

 

66


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 7 November 2022
	4 Additional Equity Investment into Peterborough HE Property Company Ltd for Phase 3 of the University
	5 Peterborough Investment Partnership 2022/2023
	5. Appendix A – PIP LLP Consolidated Accounts 2021-22. These are the latest consolidated accounts currently available.

	6 Assurance of PCC Companies
	6. Appendix A - Terms of reference for the Companies unit
	6. Appendix B - Role Description for Lead Officers

	7 Shareholder Cabinet Committee Work Programme

